
 
TOWN OF ABINGDON, VIRGINIA 

TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 

MONDAY, MAY 6, 2024 – 6:30 pm 

TOWN HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 

DRAFT AGENDA 

 

Please note there will be an opportunity during the meeting for citizens to address the Town 

Council when the Mayor declares public comments open. We request that anyone addressing 

the Council sign up, approach the podium when called, state your first and last name, and 

provide your complete mailing address. 

 

A. WELCOME – Mayor Pillion 

B. ROLL CALL – Kim Kingsley, Clerk 

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Mayor Pillion 

D. PRAYER – Brooke Bednar, The Vine Church  

E. APPROVAL OF AGENDA – Mayor Pillion 

F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

• April 1, 2024  

• April 18, 2024 

G. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Please place your name on the sign-up sheet provided; comments are 

limited to three (3) minutes per person.  

• Town of Abingdon residents 

• Other public comments (e.g. property owners, organizations) 

H. PROCLAMATIONS  

1.  Proclamation designating May 2024 as Small Business Appreciation Month 

I. PUBLIC HEARING -   Please place your name on the sign-up sheet provided; comments are 

limited to five (5) minutes per person. 

      1.  Public hearing to repeal, amend and reenact Chapter 74, Utilities, Sewers and Sewage  

      Disposal, Division 5. Fees and Charges  

J.   RESOLUTIONS 

      1.   Resolution of the Council for the Town of Abingdon to establish approved banners to be  

           displayed on the Cummings Street banner poles - Mike Cochran, Town Manager 

K. FIRST READING OF ORDINANCES 

       1.  First reading of an ordinance to repeal, amend and reenact Chapter 74, Utilities, Sewers and  

            Sewage Disposal, Division 5. Fees and Charges - – Mayana Rice, Asst. Town Manager and  

            Director of Community Development 

L. SECOND READING OF ORDINANCES 

M. CONSIDERATION OF BIDS 

       1.  Consideration of bids for Coomes Recreation Center parking lot pavement project – Michael  

            Surrett, Director of Public Works 



N. NEW BUSINESS       

O. OLD BUSINESS 

P. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM TOWN MANAGER 

      1.  Discussion regarding the FY24-25 budget 

      2.  Schedule July – December 2024 Council meetings 

Q. COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS 

R. APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS AND COMMITTEES 

      1.  Veterans Advisory Board 

            -to fill the unexpired term of Cade Parks, who recently resigned from the Board 

S.  CLOSED SESSION  

      1.  Closed session pursuant to Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, Section 2.2-3711(A)(7),  

           consultation with legal counsel, or briefing by staff or consultants regarding a proposed  

           Memorandum of Agreement with Washington County, Virginia 

T.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

 



April 1, 2024 

Council meeting minutes 

- 22 - 

 
 

 
TOWN OF ABINGDON 

COUNCIL MEETING 

MONDAY, APRIL 1, 2024 – 6:30 Pm 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS – MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

 

 The meeting of the Abingdon Town Council was held on Monday, April 1, 2024, at 6:30 

pm in the Council Chambers of the Municipal Building. 

 

A. WELCOME – Mayor Pillion  

B. ROLL CALL  

Members of Council Present: 

 

 

 

 

Wayne Austin  

Donna Quetsch 

Derek Webb 

Vice Mayor Anderson 

Mayor Pillion 

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

D. PRAYER 

E. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (VIDEO 8:31 – 9:17) 

 

On motion of Mr. Austin, seconded by Vice Mayor Anderson, amended the agenda to include 

a discussion regarding a public forum between citizens and Council under Item N. New 

Business to say consideration of a public forum. 

 

         The roll call vote was as follows:  

  

 Mr. Austin Aye 

    Mrs. Quetsch Aye 

                      Mr. Webb Aye 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson Aye 

                      Mayor Pillion Aye 

 

F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES (VIDEO 9:18 -  11:07) 

• March 4, 2024 

• March 21, 2024 Finance Committee Budget Meeting  

• March 21, 2024 

 

On motion of Mr. Austin, seconded by Mr. Webb, approved the March 4, 2024 minutes as 

presented. 

 

         The roll call vote was as follows:  

  



April 1, 2024 

Council meeting minutes 

- 23 - 

 
 

 
 Mr. Austin Aye 

    Mrs. Quetsch Aye 

                      Mr. Webb Aye 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson Aye 

                      Mayor Pillion Aye 

 

On motion of Mr. Webb, seconded by Vice Mayor Anderson, approved the March 21, 2024 

Finance Committee Budget Meeting minutes and the March 21, 2024 Council meeting 

minutes as presented. 

 

         The roll call vote was as follows:  

  

 Mr. Austin                          Abstained (work commitments) 

    Mrs. Quetsch Aye 

                      Mr. Webb Aye 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson Aye 

                      Mayor Pillion Aye 

 

 

G. PUBLIC COMMENTS (VIDEO 11:07 – 13:58) 

 

• Greg Lilly 

 

H. PROCLAMATIONS (VIDEO 14:11 – 15:50) 

 

1.  Proclamation designating April 5, 2024 as Arbor Day  

 

Mr. Webb read the Proclamation into the record. 

 

I. PUBLIC HEARING (VIDEO 15:51 – 22:22) 

 

      1.  Public hearing regarding the sale of real property located on French Moore, Jr. Boulevard 

           owned by the Town of Abingdon, namely 1.20 acres total, specifically 0.20 acre of Lot 8 (Tax  

           Map No. 104-10-8) and 1.0 acre of Lot 10 (Tax Map No. 104-10-10) 

 

 Mayor Pillion opened the public hearing.    

  

 Mayana Rice, Assistant Town Manager and Director of Community Development presented 

Wellspring Foundation recently reached an agreement to purchase 848 French Moore, Jr. Blvd.  

It was during the process, Wellspring determined that the building would need a parking lot and 

structure addition.  Wellspring approached Town staff and it was ultimately determined that the 

most economically viable option would be to sell a portion of a lot to the east and west of the 



April 1, 2024 

Council meeting minutes 

- 24 - 

 
 

 
parcel.  This would allow the Town to retain two future developable lots and Wellspring to 

precision purchase for their expansion.   

 

 Sean McMurray, Executive Director of Wellspring addressed the Council. Hearing no further 

comments, Mayor Pillion closed the public hearing.  

 

J.   RESOLUTIONS (VIDEO 22:22 - 23:37) 

 

      1.  Resolution approving a sale of a portion of property from two tax parcels, Tax Map 

           No. 104-10-8 and Tax Map No. 104-10-10 

 

On motion of Vice Mayor Anderson, seconded by Mr. Webb, approved the Resolution as 

presented to sale a portion of property from two tax parcels, Tax Map No. 104-10-8 and Tax 

Map No. 104-10-10, authorizing the Town Attorney to draft paperwork and the Town 

Manager to endorse as necessary.  

 

         The roll call vote was as follows:  

  

 Mr. Austin  Aye  

    Mrs. Quetsch Aye 

                      Mr. Webb Aye 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson Aye 

                      Mayor Pillion Aye 

 

K. FIRST READING OF ORDINANCES (VIDEO 23:37 – 26:05) 

 

       1.  First reading of an ordinance to repeal, amend and reenact Chapter 58 Solid Waste,  

            Division 2 – Town Collection and Division 3 – Containers.  

 

 Town Manager Mike Cochran advised the Council that last year a massive revision of the 

Ordinance was completed, however as it stands it was not the intent that a vacant house receive a 

trash can waiver.   The intent was if a house had storm damage, someone cannot live in it under 

major renovations or uninhabitable.    

  

On motion of Mrs. Quetsch, seconded by Vice Mayor Anderson, approved the Ordinance as 

presented and waived the second reading.  

 

         The roll call vote was as follows:  

  

 Mr. Austin  Aye  

    Mrs. Quetsch Aye 

                      Mr. Webb Aye 



April 1, 2024 

Council meeting minutes 

- 25 - 

 
 

 
                      Vice Mayor Anderson Aye 

                      Mayor Pillion Aye 

 

L. SECOND READING OF ORDINANCES 

M. CONSIDERATION OF BIDS 

N. NEW BUSINESS (VIDEO 26:10 -  34:26) 

      

1. Consideration of a public forum between citizens and Council 

 

Mr. Austin conveyed that Greg Lilly had a valid point that often time the Town Council and the 

citizens who attend the meetings do not have an opportunity to exchange information and discuss 

various topics of importance.   Mr. Austin stated that he considered Mr. Lilly’s comments and 

thinks that the Town Council should add a public forum at the mid-month meeting, regardless of 

whether the mid-month meeting takes place.   Mr. Austin suggested a meeting agenda to discuss 

matters of importance to the public and to the Town Council, with some restrictions on how it is 

handled.   The topic will be added to the mid-month meeting no less than five business days prior 

if someone is interested in discussing something with the Council that they communicate either 

with Mr. Cochran’s office or Kim Kingsley, Clerk.  He suggested no more than five individual 

topics each public forum with an allotted maximum time of fifteen minutes and if there is more 

than five then they would be placed on the following month.    

 

Vice Mayor Anderson suggested instead of five topics, maybe three per meeting.  Mr. Austin stated 

that would allow time for the Council to investigate and be prepared to do an intelligent exchange 

of information.   Mayor Pillion stated that she did not feel it would be useful if Council wasn’t 

prepared.  It was agreed that the items should be received within seven business days prior to the 

agenda being finalized, and three topics per meeting.   Mr. Bell requested that we call it something 

other than a “public forum” as he felt that had some weight to it and suggested “public discussion.” 

Mr. Bell also stated that just because something was submitted that it doesn’t mean it will 

automatically go on the agenda as Council is elected to control the agenda and run the public 

meeting, so it would be a suggestion of public discussion to send to the Manager and then to 

Council as to whether to include it on the agenda for that meeting.  Mayor Pillion stated that this 

is new, and she thinks all are in favor of trying the public discussion, and as we are approving this 

just understand that we may adjust along the way.   

 

On motion of Mr. Austin, seconded by Vice Mayor Anderson, begin a public discussion each 

mid-month meeting, beginning with the month of May, that any person who would like to 

suggest a discussion, or a topic would notify Mr. Cochran’s office or Mrs. Kingsley at least 

seven business days prior to that meeting such that can be given to Council and discussed 

that there be a maximum of three topics at each of these public discussion sessions, and the 

maximum time that we would have on a topic would be  fifteen minutes. 

 

Mayor Pillion added that anyone interested can come and speak in public comments during the 

regular meeting if they prefer.   



April 1, 2024 

Council meeting minutes 

- 26 - 

 
 

 
         The roll call vote was as follows:  

  

 Mr. Austin  Aye  

    Mrs. Quetsch Aye 

                      Mr. Webb Aye 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson Aye 

                      Mayor Pillion Aye 

 

O. OLD BUSINESS 

P. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM TOWN MANAGER 

 1.  Annual “State of the Tree” report – Kevin Sigmon, Town Arborist  (VIDEO 34:31 – 45:14) 

 

 Town Arborist Kevin Sigmon provided Council with an update including Tree City USA; tree 

plantings at Veterans Memorial Park, Abingdon Visitors Center, The Meadows splash pad, and 

the Creeper Trail parking area; tree giveaway; inflation reduction act grant funding for Ash tree 

removal on the Virginia Creeper Trail; a memorial tree for Firefighter Cameron Craig; 

expanding the mulch beds at Veterans Memorial Park; speaking engagements; and continued 

association with the Town of Marion, Trees Virginia Board of Directors and MAC-ISA Board of 

Directors.  Mr. Sigmon also discussed the Arbor Day Celebration at Abingdon Elementary 

School on Friday, April 5, 2024. 

 

2. 2023 - Year in Review – Mike Cochran, Town Manager (VIDEO 45:15 – 1:16:38) 

 

      Town Manager Mike Cochran provided Council with a 2023 - Year in Review covering 

infrastructure, pedestrian safety, tourism, recreation, public works and discussed challenges and 

opportunities in 2024.   

 

 

Q. COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS (VIDEO 1:16:38 – 1:17:04) 

 

 Mayor Pillion reminded everyone of the Day of Service and Earth Day on Saturday, April 20th  

 

R. APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS AND COMMITTEES 

S.  CLOSED SESSION  

T.  ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

      ___________________________________  

   Mayor Amanda Pillion 

_______________________________ 

Kimberly Kingsley, Clerk 

 



April 18, 2024 

Council meeting minutes 

- 27 - 

 
 

 
TOWN OF ABINGDON 

COUNCIL MEETING 

THURSDAY, APRIL 18, 2024 – 2:30 Pm 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS – MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

 

 The meeting of the Abingdon Town Council was held on Thursday, April 18, 2024, at 2:30 

pm in the Council Chambers of the Municipal Building. 

 

A. WELCOME – Mayor Pillion  

B. ROLL CALL  

Members of Council Present: 

 

 

 

 

Wayne Austin  

Donna Quetsch 

Derek Webb 

Vice Mayor Anderson 

Mayor Pillion 

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (VIDEO 6:06 – 6:29)   

 

On motion of Mrs. Quetsch, seconded by Vice Mayor Anderson, approved the agenda as 

presented. 

 

         The roll call vote was as follows:  

  

 Mr. Austin Aye 

    Mrs. Quetsch Aye 

                      Mr. Webb Aye 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson Aye 

                      Mayor Pillion Aye 

 

E. PUBLIC COMMENTS (VIDEO 6:31 – 9:45) 

• Eddie Copenhaver 

 

F. PROCLAMATIONS 

G. PUBLIC HEARING  

 

 1.  Proposed right of way and permanent easement for private utilities for William King Museum  

      of Art, a Virginia non-stock corporation, on Town owned property known as Academy Drive,  

           located at or near 415 Academy Drive NW, consisting of 25 feet in length, 15 feet in width  

           (7.5 feet on each side of the centerline), more or less, centered on coordinates 26.7100777,  

       -81.9870557.   (VIDEO 9:45 – 12:49) 

 



April 18, 2024 

Council meeting minutes 

- 28 - 

 
 

 
Heagon Gill, Engineering Technician presented information including William King 

Museum of Art is requesting a permanent easement to install and maintain the required utilities as 

a future addition to the existing structure on Academy Drive.  The Town’s Street configuration 

makes it impossible to provide required stormwater runoff quantity and quality control without 

extensive excavation, the parcel straddles both sides of Academy Drive, therefore they are 

currently seeking an easement from the Town.   Mr. Gill also added that the future addition of the 

structure will be reviewed for compliance with the stormwater management ordinance, Town’s 

zoning ordinance and the Uniform Statewide Building Code, however without a positive motion 

by the Council for the easement, the addition will not be feasible. 

 

Mayor Pillion opened the public hearing.  Hearing no comments, Mayor Pillion closed 

the public hearing.  

 

  2.  Ordinance to repeal, amend, and reenact Chapter 66. Taxation – property tax exemption for  

           Elderly and Handicapped homeowner and Qualified Veterans totally and permanently  

           handicapped property owner. (VIDEO 13:16 – 15:14) 

 

Town Manager Mike Cochran conveyed to Council this proposed amendment the amount 

of exemption as provided by the General Assembly amended Code of Virginia, Chapter 32 of Title 

58.1 relating to exemption or deferral of taxes on property of certain elderly and handicapped 

person, which will align with Washington County’s exemption or deferred taxes.  Treasurer 

Tammy Baldwin compared last year’s calculating $2,422 with an additional thirteen new 

applications that will help with the residents that need assistance.  

 

Mayor Pillion opened the public hearing.  Hearing no comments, Mayor Pillion closed 

the public hearing.  

 

H.   RESOLUTIONS (VIDEO 12:49 – 13:15) 

 

      1.  Proposed right of way and permanent easement for private utilities for William King Museum  

      of Art, a Virginia non-stock corporation, on Town owned property known as Academy Drive,  

           located at or near 415 Academy Drive NW, consisting of 25 feet in length, 15 feet in width  

           (7.5 feet on each side of the centerline), more or less, centered on coordinates 26.7100777,  

       -81.9870557. 

 

On motion of Mr. Austin, seconded by Vice Mayor Anderson accepted the proposed right of 

way and permanent easement as presented.  

 

         The roll call vote was as follows:  

  

 Mr. Austin  Aye  

    Mrs. Quetsch Aye 



April 18, 2024 

Council meeting minutes 

- 29 - 

 
 

 
                      Mr. Webb Aye 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson Aye 

                      Mayor Pillion Aye 

 

I. FIRST READING OF ORDINANCES (VIDEO 15:14 – 16:02) 

 

      1.  Ordinance to repeal, amend, and reenact Chapter 66. Taxation – property tax exemption for  

           Elderly and Handicapped homeowner and Qualified Veterans totally and permanently  

           handicapped property owner. 

  

On motion of Mr. Austin, seconded by Mr. Webb, to repeal the existing Chapter 66 taxation 

portion as set forth on the agenda and amend the ordinance in compliance with what is 

contained in the Council packet, waiving the second reading.  

 

         The roll call vote was as follows:  

  

 Mr. Austin  Aye  

    Mrs. Quetsch Aye 

                      Mr. Webb Aye 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson Aye 

                      Mayor Pillion Aye 

 

J. SECOND READING OF ORDINANCES 

K. CONSIDERATION OF BIDS 

L. NEW BUSINESS (VIDEO 16:38 – 20:16) 

      

 1. Consideration of allocation to Veterans Advisory Board from Council Contingency  

 

 Mayor Pillion conveyed the Veterans Advisory Board had some extra needs at the end of the year 

and we have extra money in our Council contingency.   

 

On motion of Mrs. Quetsch, seconded by Mr. Webb, contributed $2,500 from Council 

contingency and move to the Veterans Advisory Board.  

 

         The roll call vote was as follows:  

  

 Mr. Austin  Aye  

    Mrs. Quetsch Aye 

                      Mr. Webb Aye 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson Aye 

                      Mayor Pillion Aye 

 



April 18, 2024 

Council meeting minutes 

- 30 - 

 
 

 
Mr. Austin highlighted previous discussions concerning the in-kind contributions made to 

the Veterans Memorial Park Foundation, nothing his and Vice Mayor Anderson’s involvement on 

the Board.  Recognizing their needs, he was hopeful that the Council would contemplate making 

a donation from the contingency fund in the future. 

 

Vice Mayor Anderson urged the Council to consider a contribution from the contingency 

fund or perhaps a banner, given that the poles have been installed for the Memorial Day 

celebration.  In response, Town Manager Mike Cochran stated that a draft Resolution or policy 

would be presented for discussion, either as part of the budget process or as a standalone resolution, 

outlining all relevant details.  Further discussion followed. 

 

 2. Consideration of “Abingdon Town Council Monthly Town Hall Meeting Request Form” 

(VIDEO 20:16 – 30:22) 

 

  Mayor Pillion highlighted discussions from the previous month regarding the 

establishment of public meetings, providing citizens with an opportunity to engage with the 

Council on current issues. Mrs. Quetsch raised concerns about potential redundancy in the process, 

questioning the necessity of the topics given the Council's control over the agenda and the delay 

in addressing matters presented. She emphasized the importance of clarity regarding the purpose 

of the town hall meeting and suggested flexibility in their implementation. 

 

  Town Manager Mike Cochran explained that the intention behind the town hall meetings 

was to address issues as they arise, with the three-month rule serving as a guideline rather than a 

strict requirement. Mayor Pillion reiterated that the three-month rule was meant to ensure thorough 

discussion if deemed necessary by multiple Council members. 

 

  Mr. Austin expressed confusion over the inclusion of the three-month rule, which was not 

part of his original motion. Clerk Kim Kingsley clarified that the rule was included based on 

discussions with other clerks and to allow sufficient time for investigation of unfamiliar issues. 

 

  Ultimately, the Council agreed to delete the three-month rule from the form, 

acknowledging the need for ongoing adjustments and open communication with citizens. They 

expressed optimism about the potential of the meetings to enhance community engagement and 

decision-making. 

 

  Mayor Pillion suggested options for proceeding, including removing the three-month rule 

or approving the form with adjustments to be made as needed. Council members expressed 

willingness to adapt the process as it unfolds, with Mayor Pillion emphasizing the need for patience 

and flexibility. 

 

 On motion of Mr. Austin, seconded by Mrs. Quetsch, approves the form as provided to us 

with the deletion of the three-month rule and gives consideration to that as we move along 

and see how things go. 



April 18, 2024 

Council meeting minutes 

- 31 - 

 
 

 
 

 The roll call vote was as follows:  

  

 Mr. Austin  Aye  

    Mrs. Quetsch Aye 

                      Mr. Webb Aye 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson Aye 

                      Mayor Pillion Aye 

 

Mayor Pillion expressed satisfaction with the constructive nature of the decision, 

emphasizing the importance of collaborative problem-solving to improve processes.   She 

highlighted the Council’s role in adapting and refining procedures as necessary, expressing 

enthusiasm for the journey ahead and the potential positive outcomes of their efforts and where it 

leads the Council. 

 

M. OLD BUSINESS 

N. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM TOWN MANAGER 

 (VIDEO 30:41- 31:55) 

 

Town Manager Mike Cochran advised the banner poles were operable, provide an update 

on the Main Street flooding, the sanitary sewer project on Whites Mill Road, and the roof on the 

Barter Theatre was 75% complete.   He also reminded everyone of Earth Day and the 

Community Day of Service events this weekend. 

 

O. COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS (VIDEO 31:55 – 38:37) 

 

Mr. Austin advised of the Memorial Day program at Veterans Memorial Park on May 27, 

2024, at 11:00 am with tree dedications and a great program.  He also stated that he had received 

phone calls regarding the traffic backed up past Cummings Street for buses unloading at The Barter 

Theatre.  Town Manager Mike Cochran stated he reinforced the information with The Barter staff.   

 

Vice Mayor Anderson attended the Arbor Day Tree Dedication at Abingdon Elementary 

School and was very pleased.   He also noted that the Town of Abingdon has been a Tree City 

USA community for twenty-three years.  He also thanked Kyle Pollard and the Recreation Staff 

for assisting the Girl Scout Troop 161 with a meeting place.   

 

Mayor Pillion reminded everyone of the Washington County Day of Service this Saturday 

and provided details.  

 

Mr. Webb reminded everyone of Earth Day on Saturday and the tree give-way on April 

27th.  

   



April 18, 2024 

Council meeting minutes 

- 32 - 

 
 

 
P. APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS AND COMMITTEES (VIDEO 38:37 – 40:50) 

      1.  Board of Building Code Appeals 

      -Reappointment of Ed Fuqua, who is eligible to serve an additional term 

      2.  Sustain Abingdon 

           -Reappointment of Elizabeth Hill, who is eligible to serve an additional term 

           -Reappointment of Tom McMullen, who is eligible to serve an additional term 

      -Appointment to fill an expired position 

      3.  Tree Commission 

      -Reappointment of Greg Meade, who is eligible to serve an additional term 

 

On motion of Mrs. Quetsch, seconded by Mr. Webb, reappointed Ed Fuqua to the Board of 

Building Code Appeals; reappointed of Elizabeth Hill and Tom McMullen and appointed 

Grayson Toler to Sustain Abingdon; and reappointment of Greg Meade to serve an 

additional term on the Tree Commission. 

 

         The roll call vote was as follows:  

  

 Mr. Austin  Aye  

    Mrs. Quetsch Aye 

                      Mr. Webb Aye 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson Aye 

                      Mayor Pillion Aye 

 

Q.  CLOSED SESSION  

R.  ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

      ___________________________________  

   Mayor Amanda Pillion 

_______________________________ 

Kimberly Kingsley, Clerk 

 

 



 

 
PROCLAMATION 

 

DESIGNATING MAY 2024 AS SMALL BUSINESS APPRECIATION MONTH 

 

WHEREAS, Abingdon businesses play essential roles in strengthening our community 

through their innovation, creation, expansion, and employing a workforce that preserves the economic 

well-being and quality of life for all our citizens; and 

WHEREAS, Abingdon businesses operate in diverse industries, including manufacturing, 

services, retail, tourism, agribusiness, and information technology; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Abingdon is pleased to recognize the accomplishments of our 

existing business; entrepreneurs; small, minority, and women-owned businesses; and the major 

employers that contribute significantly to the economic recovery of our region; and 

WHEREAS, it is fitting to offer the citizens of our community a unique opportunity to 

recognize Abingdon businesses for the essential role they play in driving the new and diverse 

economy; 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved, I acknowledge the importance of businesses and the 

numerous contributions they make to our community and recognize May 2024 as SMALL 

BUSINESS APPRECIATION MONTH in the TOWN OF ABINGDON.  

 

    TOWN OF ABINGDON, VIRGINIA 

 

 

    By: ________________________________ 

      Amanda Pillion, Mayor 
 



ABINGDON TOWN COUNCIL 
Agenda Item Summary 

 
MEETING DATE:  May 6, 2024     AGENDA ITEM:  J - 1 
 

 ITEM TITLE:   Resolution of the Council for the Town of Abingdon to establish approved 
banner to be displayed on the Cummings Street banner poles  

 

SUMMARY:  Council voted to reinstall the banner poles on Cummings Street and adopted a 
policy called the “Business Display Requirements” on May 18, 2023.   The banner poles have 
been installed.  Presentation of the proposed Resolution includes approved banners to be 
displayed during the appropriate dates as the events are scheduled.  
 

 

 
 
 
 
PRIOR ACTION(S):    
 
FISCAL IMPACT:    
 
STAFF CONTACT(S):  Mike Cochran, Town Manager 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  To adopt as presented.    
 
 
 
 
 

 

 











ABINGDON TOWN COUNCIL 

Agenda Item Summary 

 

MEETING DATE:  May 6, 2024 AGENDA ITEM: K - 1 

 

ITEM TITLE: First reading of an ordinance to repeal, amend and reenact Chapter 74. Utilities, Sewers 

and Sewage Disposal, Division 5. Fees and Charges 

 

SUMMARY: This request is to modify the due dates and charges on utility accounts. Initially, there was 

some concern regarding the language advertised in the public hearing notice, which mirrored the existing 

ordinance wording. After reviewing the various options, it is requested to set the due date as the sixth of 

each month. This adjustment provides residents with a consistent due date, eliminating the fluctuation they 

currently experience. Additionally, a late fee of 10% will be incurred if payment is not received by the 

seventh day of the month. 

 

 

 

 

 

PRIOR ACTION(S): 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 

STAFF CONTACT(S): Tammy Baldwin, Treasurer 

 

RECOMMENDATION: To adopt and waive second reading as presented. 

 



 

 

An Ordinance of the Council for the Town of Abingdon, Virginia 

to repeal, amend and reenact the Town Ordinance Chapter 74, Utilities, Sewers and Sewage 

Disposal, Division 5. Fees and Charges 

 

WHEREAS, §§15.2-1425 and 15.2-1429 of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended, grants the local 

governing body in the performance of its duties, obligations and functions may adopt, as appropriate, 

ordinances and resolutions and motions; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Abingdon's current Code, Chapter 74, Utilities, Sewers and Sewage 

Disposal, Division 5. Fees and Charges, the Council for the Town of Abingdon has found it in the best interest 

to repeal, amend, and reenact the body of its ordinance; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the council of the Town of Abingdon that: 

 

1. Should any section or provision of this ordinance be decided to be invalid or unconstitutional by 

a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other 

section or provision of this ordinance or the Code of the Town of Abingdon, Virginia; and 

2. The Town of Abingdon's current Code, Chapter 74. Utilities, Sewers and Sewage Disposal, Divi-

sion 5. Fees and Charges, that are proposed for amendment currently appear as follows: 

 

Division 5 

Fees and Charges 

§ 74-232 Connections. 

[Ord. of 2-7-2011] 

(a) The tap fee or charge for a sewer connection, either inside or outside the Town, shall be as authorized by 

the Town Council from time to time. 

(b) In addition to such tap fees or charges for sewer connections, persons making such connections shall 

pay refundable deposits for such sewer service, as authorized by the Town Council from time to time. 

§ 74-233 Availability charges. 

[Ord. of 2-7-2011] 

Availability charges shall be as authorized by the Town Council from time to time. 

§ 74-234 Rates for sewer service. 

[Ord. of 2-7-2011] 

The charges for sewer service shall be as authorized by the Town Council from time to time. These include:  

(a) Base rates for all sewage works users. These fees reflect the cost for the treatment of normal domestic 



wastewater. 

(b) High strength surcharge:  

(1) All users who discharge a waste which contains more than 250 milligrams per liter of BOD or more 

than 250 milligrams per liter of suspended solids shall pay a surcharge on the amount of BOD and 

suspended solids that exceed the above amounts. Other wastes containing concentrations of constituents 

that require treatment in excess of that required for normal wastewaters may be subject to surcharge at 

rates established by the Town. 

(2) Surcharges for high strength shall be based on samples collected and analyzed by the Town or from 

results submitted to the Town in accordance with the requirements of an industrial discharger permit. 

Samples shall be collected on a periodic basis but not less than once a year. 

(3) High strength wastes will only be accepted when it can be demonstrated that they will not damage the 

collection or treatment facilities and will not impair the treatment process. 

(4) The rate for high strength wastes shall be calculated on the basis of the number of pounds of BOD and 

suspended solids discharged to the sewer in excess of 250 milligrams per liter of BOD and 250 

milligrams per liter of suspended solids. 

(c) Hauled wastewater fees. Fees for the treatment of hauled wastes shall be established by the Town to 

reflect the costs of treating these wastes. These fees shall be authorized by the Town from time to time. 

(d) Sewer line maintenance fees. All costs associated with the cleaning and repairing of sewer lines and 

restoring service to the affected areas plus any damages as may be assessed by the Town due to 

blockages or manhole overflows in the collection system that are caused by residential, industrial or 

other users. Successive occurrences within 12 months of the previous occurrence - A $1,000 penalty 

plus all costs associated with cleaning the sewer lines and restoring service to the affected areas, plus 

any damages as may be assessed by the Town. 

§ 74-235 Churches. 

[Ord. of 2-7-2011] 

For the purpose of assessing sewer use fees, churches will be classified as residential accounts. However, 

churches are not exempt from pretreatment fees or regulations as specified by the Town Manager. Churches 

are defined for this purpose to exclude those which operate day schools on a routine continuing basis. 

§ 74-236 Additional metering. 

[Ord. of 2-7-2011] 

Owners or occupants using private water supplies which are disposed of in the public sewer shall install at 

their own expense a metering installation satisfactory to the Town for determining the volume of such water 

as a basis for sewer service charge. Similarly, owners or occupants who use significant amounts of water in 

such a way that the water is not discharged to the sewer may, upon approval of the Town, establish separate 

accounts for the purpose of separating such usage. 

§ 74-237 Billing, when due and payable. 

[Ord. of 2-7-2011] 

(a) For residential, industrial and commercial users, monthly user charges will be based on actual water 

usage. If a residential, commercial or industrial user has a consumptive use of water, or in some other 

manner uses water which is not discharged into the wastewater collection system, the user charge for 

that contributor may be based on readings of a wastewater meter or separate water meter installed and 



maintained at the user's expense. 

(b) Each user shall pay for the services provided by the Town based on each user's use of the treatment 

works as determined by water meter readings acceptable to the Town. 

(c) All users, including those who have sewer services available to them under this division even though not 

connected to their premises, shall be billed monthly. Payments are due within 10 days after the billing 

date. Any payment not received within 25 days after the billing date shall be delinquent. A late payment 

penalty of 10% of the user charge bill will be added to each delinquent bill. When any bill is more than 

20 days in default, water and/or sewer service to such premises shall be discontinued until such bill is 

paid. 

§ 74-238 Annual review of charges. 

[Ord. of 2-7-2011] 

(a) The Town will review the user charges at least annually and recommend to the Town Council the 

revision, if any, of rates as necessary to ensure that adequate revenues are generated to pay the costs of 

operation and maintenance, including replacement, and to provide for the systems' continuance for the 

proportional distribution of operation and maintenance, including replacement costs among users and 

user classes. 

(b) The Town will notify all users by appropriate public notice of any change in the rate being charged or to 

be charged for operation and maintenance, including replacement of the treatment works. 

§ 74-239 Fee for reconnection of water service upon payment of delinquent charges. 

[Ord. of 2-7-2011] 

For restoring the water supply to any premises in which the sewer account is delinquent, the property owner 

or occupant shall pay to the Town such fee as specified by the Washington County Service Authority for 

restoring the service. Such fee shall be collected by the Washington County Service Authority as a part of the 

delinquent account. 

§ 74-240 Lien for unpaid service charges. 

[Ord. of 2-7-2011] 

All unpaid charges for sewer service, together with the penalties and interest thereon, shall constitute a lien 

on the property served and shall be collected in the same manner as delinquent real estate taxes or such other 

method as may be permitted by applicable law at the discretion of the Town. 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that upon the recommendation of the Council for the Town of 

Abingdon Code, Chapter 74. Utilities, Sewers and Sewage Disposal, Division 5. Fees and Charges 58 Solid 

Waste, Division 2 – Town Collection and Division 3 – Containers be repealed, amended, and reenacted as 

follows: 

Division 5 

Fees and Charges 

§ 74-232 Connections. 

 

(a) The tap fee or charge for a sewer connection, either inside or outside the Town, shall be as authorized by 

the Town Council from time to time. 



(b) In addition to such tap fees or charges for sewer connections, persons making such connections shall 

pay refundable deposits for such sewer service, as authorized by the Town Council from time to time. 

§ 74-233 Availability charges. 

 

Availability charges shall be as authorized by the Town Council from time to time. 

§ 74-234 Rates for sewer service. 

 

The charges for sewer service shall be as authorized by the Town Council from time to time. These include:  

(a) Base rates for all sewage work users. These fees reflect the cost for the treatment of normal domestic 

wastewater. 

(b) High strength surcharge:  

(1) All users who discharge waste which contains more than 250 milligrams per liter of BOD or more than 

250 milligrams per liter of suspended solids shall pay a surcharge on the amount of BOD and suspended 

solids that exceed the above amounts. Other waste containing concentrations of constituents that require 

treatment more than that required for normal wastewater may be subject to surcharge at rates established 

by the Town. 

(2) Surcharges for high strength shall be based on samples collected and analyzed by the Town or from 

results submitted to the Town in accordance with the requirements of an industrial discharge permit. 

Samples shall be collected on a periodic basis but not less than once a year. 

(3) High strength wastes will only be accepted when it can be demonstrated that they will not damage the 

collection or treatment facilities and will not impair the treatment process. 

(4) The rate for high strength waste shall be calculated based on the number of pounds of BOD and 

suspended solids discharged to the sewer more than 250 milligrams per liter of BOD and 250 milligrams 

per liter of suspended solids. 

(c) Hauled wastewater fees. Fees for the treatment of hauled waste shall be established by the Town 

Council to reflect the costs of treating this waste. These fees shall be authorized by the Town Council 

from time to time. 

(d) Sewer line maintenance fees. All costs associated with the cleaning and repairing of sewer lines and 

restoring service to the affected areas plus any damages as may be assessed by the Town due to 

blockages or manhole overflows in the collection system that are caused by residential, industrial, or 

other users. Successive occurrences within 12 months of the previous occurrence - A $1,000 penalty 

plus all costs associated with cleaning the sewer lines and restoring service to the affected areas, plus 

any damage as may be assessed by the Town. 

§ 74-235 Churches. 

 

To assess sewer use fees, churches will be classified as residential accounts. However, churches are not 

exempt from pretreatment fees or regulations as specified by the Town Manager. Churches are defined for 

this purpose to exclude those which operate day schools on a routine continuing basis. 



§ 74-236 Additional metering. 

 

Owners or occupants using private water supplies which are disposed of in the public sewer shall install at 

their own expense a metering installation satisfactory to the Town for determining the volume of such water 

as a basis for sewer service charge. Similarly, owners or occupants who use significant amounts of water in 

such a way that the water is not discharged to the sewer may, upon approval of the Town, establish separate 

accounts for the purpose of separating such usage. 

§ 74-237 Billing, when due and payable. 

 

(a) For residential, industrial, and commercial users, monthly user charges will be based on actual water 

usage. If a residential, commercial, or industrial user has a consumptive use of water, or in some other 

manner uses water which is not discharged into the wastewater collection system, the user charge for 

that contributor may be based on readings of a wastewater meter or separate water meter installed and 

maintained at the user's expense. 

(b) Each user shall pay for the services provided by the Town based on each user's use of the treatment 

works as determined by water meter readings acceptable to the Town. 

(c) Payments are due on or before the sixth (6th) day of each month.   

(d)  A late fee equal to 10% of the monthly charge will be added to delinquent bills.  

§ 74-238 Annual review of charges. 

(a) The Town will review the user charges at least annually and recommend to the Town Council the 

revision, if any, of rates as necessary to ensure that adequate revenues are generated to pay the costs of 

operation and maintenance, including replacement, and to provide for the systems' continuance for the 

proportional distribution of operation and maintenance, including replacement costs among users and 

user classes. 

(b) The Town will notify all users by appropriate public notice of any change in the rate being charged or to 

be charged for operation and maintenance, including replacement of the treatment works. 

§ 74-239 Fee for disconnect and reconnection of water service upon payment of delinquent charges. 

 

Delinquent accounts may be disconnected in conformance with Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, §15.2-

2121.1(c), et seq.  A disconnect fee shall be established by the Town Manager and will be charged the day 

before service is disconnected, unless payment is received to the Town of Abingdon by 4:30 pm the day 

before service is due to be disconnected.  

A reconnection fee shall be established by the Town Manager for restoring the water supply to any premises 

which has been disconnected. The property owner or occupant shall pay such fee to the Town of Abingdon.  

§ 74-240 Lien for unpaid service charges. 

 

All unpaid charges for sewer service, together with the penalties and interest thereon, shall constitute a lien 

on the property served and shall be collected in the same manner as delinquent real estate taxes or such other 

method as may be permitted by applicable law at the discretion of the Town. 



 

CERTIFICATE 

Pursuant to Section 2-100 of the Code of the Town of Abingdon, Virginia, I hereby certify that I have 

reviewed the foregoing proposed ordinance to amend, and find it to be in correct form, as set forth above. 

          

         

   ______________________________   

             Cameron Bell, Counsel  

 

 

This ordinance was adopted on the ____ day of _________, 2024 to take effect on the ____ day of 

___________ 2024. 

 

          

            Amanda Pillion, Mayor 

 

The undersigned Clerk of the Town of Abingdon, Virginia (the “Town”), hereby certifies that the 

foregoing constitutes a true and correct copy of an ordinance duly adopted at a meeting of the Council held on 

_____________________. I hereby certify that such meeting was a regularly scheduled meeting and that, 

during the consideration of the foregoing ordinance, a quorum was present. I further certify that the minutes of 

meeting was a regularly scheduled meeting and that, during the consideration of the foregoing ordinance, a 

quorum was present. I further certify that the minutes of such meeting reflect the attendance of the members 

and the voting on the foregoing ordinance was as follows:  

 

MEMBERS  ATTENDANCE  VOTE 

Amanda Pillion, Mayor   

Dwyane Anderson, Vice Mayor   

Derek Webb   

Donna Quetsch   

Wayne Austin    

WITNESS MY HAND and the seal of the Town of Abingdon as of ____________, 2024. 

(SEAL)  

 

          

Kimberly Kingsley, Clerk 

 

 

 



ABINGDON TOWN COUNCIL 

Agenda Item Summary 

MEETING DATE: May 6, 2024 

ITEM TITLE: ITB- Asphalt Resurfacing Coomes Center 

AGENDA ITEM: Consideration of Bids 

SUMMARY: The Town of Abingdon posted an "Invitation to Bid" for the Asphalt Resurfacing of 
the Coomes Center Parking area on April 9, 2024, to solicit bids for asphalt 
maintenance. Invitation was posted through all social media outlets and Virginia EVA. 
The town received one (1) bid. A bid opening was conducted on April 23,2024 
where W-L Construction was the lowest bidder at $149,474.57. This contract is 
paid out of the FY-24 recreation Dept. funds that are allocated parking lot 
maintenance. 

PRIOR ACTION{S): Staff evaluation, Advertisement for bidders 

FISCAL IMPACT: Recreation Department Budget 

STAFF CONTACT(S): Michael Surrett, Director of Public Works 
Kyle Pollard, Director of Recreation 

RECOMMENDATION: Award to W-L Construction for $149,474.57 



















































Revised 2023.01.03  

e  

 
 

PUBLIC DOCUMENT –  

SUBJECT TO FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 

 

APPLICATION EXPIRES DECEMBER 31, 2023 

 

Board and Commission Application 

 

The Abingdon Town Council has adopted this application for use by individuals interested in appointment to 

any of the Town’s advisory boards and commissions. To ensure your application will receive full 

consideration, please answer all questions completely. Questions? Call 276-492-2149 

 

Please return this application either: 

 In person (3rd floor of the Town Hall), 133 West Main Street, Abingdon, VA;  

 By mail, Boards and Commissions, Town of Abingdon, P.O. Box 789, Abingdon, VA 24212; or 

 kkingsley@abingdon-va.gov 

 

***PLEASE PRINT OR TYPE*** 

 

Name                         Date: ________________________

Address City/State Zip   

 

Do you live inside the Town limits of Abingdon?  Yes     

 

No   

 

Telephone: __________ __________ 

 

 

Email Address: (required) _______________________________________________________________ 

 

Place of Employment: ___________________________________________________________________ 

 

Address: _____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Description of job duties: ________________________________________________________________ 

 

Educational background: 

   _____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

   _____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

  

 

Joshua Ringstaff

04/09/24

21261 Green Spring Rd

Abingdon, VA

24211

x

(540) 797-1583

jringstaff@abingdon-va.gov

Town of Abingdon - Meadows Coordinator

78 Cook St. Abingdon, VA 24210

Schedule tournaments, supervise and manage maintenance crew 

B.A. History - Roanoke College, M.A. Special Education - Mary Baldwin University



Revised 2023.01.03  

 

 

 
Are you currently serving on a board or commission of the Town of Abingdon?  Yes_____ No ______ 

 

If so, which Board(s) or Commission(s)? __________________________________________________ 

 

   When do(es) your present term(s) expire? (mm/yy) ___________________________________ 
  

Have you ever served on any boards or commissions in the past, either Abingdon or in other localities?   

   Yes   __    No   __ 

 

If so, name and date(s) of service? ______________________________________________________ 

  
Why do you wish to serve the Town in this capacity? Do you have an area of interest or background that 

you believe would be a beneficial service in this capacity?  If so, what is it and how would it be helpful? 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Are you presently more than 30 days delinquent on Town of Abingdon taxes?   Yes ______    No _____ 

 

To the best of my ability, all information on this application is true and correct. 

 

SIGNATURE      

 

 Thank you for your interest in appointment to the Town’s Advisory Boards and Commissions. ** 

 

Members of the Planning Commission, Economic Development Authority, Board of Zoning Appeals, 

Housing and Redevelopment Authority, and Historic Preservation Review Board are required to complete a 

Statement of Economic Interest. 

 

Please circle any other committees you are willing to serve on: 

Board of Building Code  Appeals ** Planning Commission */** 

Board of Zoning Appeals Recreation Advisory Commission 

Economic Development Authority Sinking Spring Cemetery Committee ** 

Infrastructure Advisory Committee Sustain Abingdon Committee 

Historic Preservation Review Board */** Tourism Advisory Committee ** 

Housing and Redevelopment Authority Tree Commission 

Abingdon Arts Commission Virginia Highlands Small Business Incubator  

Veterans Advisory Board  

*May be required to attend training and/or obtain certification during term 

**Appointment contingent upon residency, qualified voter, or other qualifications as set forth in 

           Ordinance and/or bylaws 

Note:   All applicants are subject to background verification. 
 

x

x

I am a current member of the US Army Reserve serving as a Drill Sergeant and medic.  I am interested 

helping fellow Veterans, and promoting a positive relationship between our Veterans and the community.  

x


	A - 1 2024.05.06 draft agenda
	F - 1 2024.04.01 minutes
	F - 1a 2024.04.18 minutes
	H - 1 Business Appreciation Month
	J - 1 Banner display Resolution - Agenda Item Summary
	J - 1a  Resolution for banner display
	K - 1 Agenda Item Summary Chapter 74.   2024.04.25 version Utilities. Sewers and Sewage Disposal. Division 5. Fees and Charges
	K - 1a Chapter 74.   2024.04.25 version Utilities. Sewers and Sewage Disposal. Division 5. Fees and Charges
	M - 1 Coomes Center-Parking Lot Paving Project-04.23.2024
	R - 1 Ringstaff, Josh



